# CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY **REPORTER**

No 6301

WEDNESDAY 13 MARCH 2013

Vol cxliii No 24

#### CONTENTS

Notices	
Calendar	396
Discussion on Tuesday, 19 March 2013:	
Cancellation	396
Notice of a benefaction	396
Amending Statute for Clare College: Notice	396
University Composition Fees: Notice	396
University Computing Service relocation: Notice	406
Vacancies, appointments, etc.	
Vacancies in the University	406
CRASSH Visiting Fellowships, Early	
Career Fellowships, and Mellon Teaching	
Fellowships, 2013–14	406
Awards, etc.	
Evans Fund: Notice	407
Notices by Faculty Boards, etc.	
Natural Sciences Tripos, Part II (Biological	
and Biomedical Sciences), 2013-14: Notice	407
Reports	
Report of the General Board on the re-	
establishment of a Professorship in the	
Sainsbury Laboratory	408
Report of the General Board on the establishment	
of a Readership in Number Theory	408

Graces	
Graces submitted to the Regent House on	
13 March 2013	409
Acta	
Approval of Grace submitted to the Regent	
House on 27 February 2013	409
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	
Report of Discussion	
Report of Discussion Tuesday, 5 March 2013	409
Report of Discussion	409
Report of Discussion Tuesday, 5 March 2013	409 410
Report of Discussion Tuesday, 5 March 2013 College Notices	
Report of Discussion Tuesday, 5 March 2013 College Notices Elections	410
Report of Discussion Tuesday, 5 March 2013 College Notices Elections Vacancies	410 410



#### NOTICES

#### Calendar

- 15 March, Friday. Full Term ends.
- 19 March, Tuesday. Discussion at 2 p.m. in the Senate-House.
- 23 March, Saturday. Congregation of the Regent House at 10 a.m.
- 25 March, Monday. Lent Term ends.
- 31 March, Sunday. Easter Day. Scarlet Day.
- 17 April, Wednesday. Easter Term begins.

#### Discussion on Tuesday, 19 March 2013: Cancellation

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that the Discussion announced for Tuesday, 19 March 2013 will not take place as there are no Reports ready for discussion.

The two Reports published in this issue (on p. 408) will be discussed on Tuesday, 30 April 2013.

#### Notice of a benefaction

#### 11 March 2013

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that he has received with gratitude a benefaction of securities valued in the region of £1 million from Dr Colin Forbes, formerly a University Lecturer in the Department of Geology and a Curator of the Sedgwick Museum of Earth Sciences. The benefaction, of which the capital and the income will be available, will be added to the Forbes Fund (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 814), which was established to support the Sedgwick Museum of Earth Sciences following a benefaction from Dr Forbes in 2010.

#### **Amending Statute for Clare College: Notice**

#### 11 March 2013

The Vice-Chancellor begs leave to refer to his Notice of 18 February 2013 (*Reporter*, 6298, 2012–13, p. 368), concerning a proposed amending Statute for Clare College. He hereby gives notice that in the opinion of the Council the proposed Statute makes no alteration of any Statute which affects the University, and does not require the consent of the University; that the interests of the University are not prejudiced by it, and that the Council has resolved to take no action upon it, provided that the Council will wish to reconsider the proposed Statute if it has not been submitted to the Privy Council by 8 March 2014.

### **University Composition Fees: Notice**

#### 11 March 2013

In the following Notice the Council proposes amendments to the fees for certain categories of students.

#### Fees for certain courses in 2013-14

#### Fees for Home and EU postgraduate students in 2013-14

The Council proposes a rate of increase of 1.88% on 2012–13 fees for Home and EU postgraduate research courses for the academical year 2013–14, reflecting guidance by the Research Councils.

The same increase will apply by default to fees for taught courses except where other proposals have been made by the Councils of the Schools or minor adjustment to the schedule is needed.

#### M.B.A., M.Fin., and M.St. courses

The Council proposes the 2013–14 fees for the M.B.A. and M.Fin. courses and certain M.St. courses which have been recommended by the relevant bodies as set out in the Schedule attached to this Notice.

#### Fees for Continuing Undergraduate Island Students in 2013-14

Because UUK no longer provide annual guidance about the fees to be charged to Island students, the Council proposes that previous guidance be followed for continuing students who commenced in 2012 or earlier. (The separate category of Island student has been abolished for new entrants in and after 2013.)

- (*a*) Fees for Island students who commenced in 2012 were set with reference to Home/EU New Regime fees; those fees have not increased for 2013–14 and it is proposed that the Island rate of fees does not increase.
- (b) The Student Fees (Inflation Index) Regulations informed UUK's recommendations for the annual increase to be applied to the Island rate of fees for students admitted before 2012. The initial rate quoted by UUK for 2012–13 was subsequently retracted and substituted by a lower value but too late to be acted on by the University. The Council therefore recommends an increase of 1.1% for 2013–14 over the fees charged in 2012–13 to bring them back in line, with an exception for the Group 4/5 rate which would exceed the fee charged to Island students admitted the next year if not held back to the same value.

The proposed fees are set out in the Schedule attached to this Notice.

#### Fees for certain courses in 2014–15

Fees for overseas students in 2014–15

The Council proposes that:

- (a) Overseas fees for all continuing and new entrant undergraduate students be increased by 5% over the 2013–14 rates;
- (b) Overseas fees for all continuing and new entrant postgraduate students be increased by 5% over the 2013–14 rates (except for continuing Ph.D., MSc., M.Litt., Ed.D., Eng.D. and C.P.G.S. students who commenced in 2013–14 as their fees are fixed for the duration of their course).

## Additional increments for certain postgraduate courses in the School of Humanities and Social Sciences, and the School of Technology from September 2014

The Councils of the Schools have recommended that the fees for the courses listed below should be amended, with effect from September 2014, as follows:

M.Phil. Degree:	
Advanced Computer Science	Both the Home/EU and Overseas fees to be the same as Advanced
	Chemical Engineering
Applied Biological Anthropology	Home/EU fee to increase to £5,799
Biological Anthropological Science	Home/EU fee to increase to £5,799
Education	Home/EU fee to be the same value as the Home/EU UG New Regime fee <i>inclusive</i> of the College Graduate Fee
	Overseas fees to increase by £500 plus general inflation increase
History, Philosophy, and Sociology of Science, Technology, and Medicine	Home/EU fee to be the same as Modern Society and Global Transformation
	Overseas fees to increase by £500 plus general inflation increase
Human Evolutionary Studies	Home/EU fees to increase to £5,799
Social Anthropology	For all students – to be the same fee as the course in International Relations and Politics
Social Anthropology	

For all the following courses, the Overseas fees are to increase by £300 (in addition to the general inflation increase):

American Literature Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic Architecture Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Classics English Studies European Literature and Culture History of Art and Architecture Medieval and Renaissance Literature Music Studies Philosophy Screen Media and Cultures Theology and Religious Studies Theoretical and Applied Linguistics

M.Res. Degree: Social Anthropology

For all students – to be the same fee as the course in International Relations and Politics

#### Ed.D.

The Home/EU fee to be 50% of the M.Phil. Education Home/EU fee (the same value as the M.Ed.).

The Council is accordingly submitting a Grace to the Regent House (Grace 1, p. 409) for the approval of the revised fees set out in the Schedule attached to this Notice.

Subject to the approval of the Grace, a complete table of fees will be published in the next edition of *Statutes and Ordinances* and made available on the Planning and Resource Allocation Office website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/ offices/planning/).

#### 13 March 2013

### SCHEDULE

#### TABLE OF FEES

Table 1 <sup>1</sup>	Annual Fee (£)			
	Overseas students			
		2014–15		
	Α	В	С	
Qualification	Overseas students who commenced in or before 2010–11	Overseas students w commenced in 2011–12	who Overseas students who commenced in 2012–13 or later years <sup>2</sup>	
B.A. Degree: <sup>3</sup> Courses leading to Tripos, Preliminary, or Ordinary Examinations in Group 1				
Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic Asian and Middle Eastern Studies (Oriental Studies)	13,020	13,668	14,346	
In Cambridge	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Abroad <sup>4</sup>	50% Home fee	6,837	7,176	
Classics	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Economics	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Education	13,020	13,668	14,346	
English	13,020	13,668	14,346	
History	13,020	13,668	14,346	
History of Art	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Human, Social, and Political Sciences	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Land Economy	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Law	13,020	15,008	14,340	
In Cambridge	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Abroad <sup>4</sup>	50% Home fee	6,837	7,176	
Linguistics	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Modern and Medieval Languages				
In Cambridge	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Abroad <sup>4</sup>	50% Home fee	6,837	7,176	
Philosophy	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Theological and Religious Studies	13,020	13,668	14,346	
<i>Group 2</i> Mathematics	13,020	13,668	15,999	
	- )	- )	- 3	
Group 3		1= 000	10	
Architecture	17,043	17,889	18,774	
Geography	17,043	17,889	18,774	
Music	17,043	17,889	18,774	
Group 4				
Chemical Engineering	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Computer Science	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Engineering	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Management Studies	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Manufacturing Engineering	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Natural Sciences	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Psychological and Behavioural Sciences	17,043	20,799	21,831	
Group 5				
Medical and Veterinary Sciences (including fo this purpose the Second M.B. and Second Vet.M.B. Examinations) <sup>5</sup>	r 17,043	33,075	34,722	
B.Th. Degree	13,020	13,668	14,346	
Mus.B. Degree		[currently suspende	ed]	
Medical and Veterinary Degrees: M.B., B.Chir. Degrees, Vet.M.B. Degree <sup>6</sup>	31,521	33,075	34,722	

#### Table 1 (continued)<sup>1</sup>

Annual Fee (£)

		Overseas students	
		2014–15	
	Α	В	С
Qualification	Overseas students who commenced in or before 2010–11	Overseas students wh commenced in 2011–12	no Overseas students who commenced in 2012–13 or later years <sup>2</sup>
M.Eng. Degree and M.Sci. Degree	17,043	20,799	21,831
M.Math. Degree	13,020	13,668	15,999
Certificates			
Certificate in Humanities Computing for Languages	17,043	17,889	18,774
Certificate in Modern Languages	13,020	13,668	14,346
Postgraduate Certificate in Education (P.G.C.E.)	) 17,043	17,889	18,774
Diplomas			
Modern Languages	13,020	13,668	14,346
<b>M.A.St. Degree:</b> <sup>7</sup> <i>Courses leading to examinations in</i>			
Astrophysics	17,043	20,799	21,831
Materials Science	17,043	20,799	21,831
Mathematics	13,020	13,668	15,999
Physics	17,043	20,799	21,831

#### **Footnotes:**

1 See Tables 5A–5D for continuing "old system" students, students taking equivalent or lower qualifications, co-funded students, and students for whom the Island rate of fees applies.

2 Including Island students who commence in and after 2013–14. Fees for continuing Island students who commenced before 2013–14 are shown in Table 5D.

3 Students who have proceeded to the B.A. Degree but have been given leave to read for another Tripos 'not for honours' are deemed to be ELQ students for the purpose of their fee liability (see Table 5B).

4 This fee applies to students undertaking a course of study in a member country of the European Union under Regulation 6 for the Law Tripos and to students spending a period abroad in accordance with Regulation 23 for the Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Tripos or Regulation 28 for the Modern and Medieval Languages Tripos.

5 Parts IA and IB. The fee payable by a student who is reading for another Tripos in order to satisfy the requirements for the B.A. Degree is the fee set out for that Tripos.

6 Payable only if a student pursues her or his clinical studies in the University.

7 M.A.St. Home/EU students will continue to pay "old regime" fees until 2015–16 when "new regime" students will be in their fourth year (pay the same fee as Cambridge students doing the same fourth year course).

Table 2	Annual Fee (£)	
	Home/EU students	Overseas students <sup>8</sup>
Qualification	2013-14	2014–15
LL.M. Degree	8,124	19,446
M.C.L. Degree	21,000	22,050
M.Ed. Degree	2,496	8,166
M.Mus. Degree	6,009	16,911
M.Phil. Degree: <sup>9</sup>	0,009	10,911
Courses leading to examinations in		
Advanced Chemical Engineering	8,046	22,776
Advanced Computer Science	3,900	22,776
African Studies	4,998	15,807
American Literature	4,998	15,807
Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic	4,998	15,807
Applied Biological Anthropology	4,998	18,774
Archaeological Research	4,998	15,807
Archaeology	4,998	15,807
Architecture	4,998	15,807
Architecture and Urban Studies (previously Environmental Design in Architecture Option A)	4,998	19,824
Architecture and Urban Design Year 1 (previously Environmental Design in Architecture Option B)	3,465	19,824
Architecture and Urban Design Year 2 (previously Environmental Design in Architecture Option B)	1,725	9,912
Asian and Middle Eastern Studies	4,998	15,807
Assyriology	4,998	15,807
Astronomy	3,900	18,774
Biological Anthropological Science	4,998	18,774
Biological Science	3,900	18,774
Bioscience Enterprise Chemical Engineering and Biotechnology	8,046 3,900	18,774 18,774
Chemistry	3,900	18,774
Classics	4,998	15,807
Clinical Science (Primary Care Research)	3,900	23,649
Clinical Science (Translational Medicine and Therapeutics)	3,900	23,649
Computational Biology	3,900	18,774
Conservation Leadership	3,900	18,774
Criminological Research	4,998	15,807
Criminology	4,998	15,807
Development Studies	10,215	19,446
Developmental Biology Early Modern History	3,900	18,774
Earth Sciences	4,998 3,900	15,807 18,774
Economic and Social History	4,998	15,807
Economic Research	11,382	18,948
Economics	11,382	18,948
Education	4,998	16,332
Egyptology	4,998	15,807
Energy Technologies	4,497	20,013
Engineering	3,900	18,774
Engineering for Sustainable Development	3,900	18,774
English Studies	4,998	15,807
Environment, Society, and Development	3,900	18,774
Environmental Policy Environmental Science	8,046 3,900	15,807 18,774
Epidemiology	3,900	18,774
European Literature and Culture	4,998	15,807
Finance	14,136	18,774
Finance and Economics (from 1 October 2012)	11,382	18,948
Financial Research	3,900	18,774
Fluid Flow in Industry and the Environment	3,900	18,774
Geographical Research	3,900	14,346
Historical Studies	4,998	15,807
History of Art and Architecture	4,998	15,807

Table 2 (continued)

#### Annual Fee (£) Home/EU students **Overseas students<sup>8</sup>** Oualification 2013 - 142014 - 15History, Philosophy, and Sociology of Science, Technology, 4.998 17.550 and Medicine 4,998 Human Evolutionary Studies 18,774 Industrial Systems, Manufacturing, and Management 19.446 6,114 Innovation, Strategy, and Organization 3.900 18.774 International Relations and Politics (from 1 October 2013) 9,000 18,948 4.998 15.807 Land Economy 4,998 Land Economy Research 15,807 4,998 Latin-American Studies 15,807 17.880 18.774 Management Management Science and Operations 3,900 18,774 3,900 Materials Science and Metallurgy (from 1 October 2012) 18,774 Medical Science 3.900 18.774 Medieval and Renaissance Literature 4,998 15,807 Medieval History 4,998 15,807 3,900 Micro- and Nanotechnology Enterprise 18,774 4,998 15,807 Modern European History 17,025 Modern Society and Global Transformations 5,514 4.998 Modern South Asian Studies 15.807 Multi-disciplinary Gender Studies 5.241 15,807 Music Studies 4,998 15,807 21,201 Nuclear Energy 5,823 Philosophy 4.998 15,807 Physics 3,900 18,774 Planning, Growth, and Regeneration 8.046 15.807 3,900 Polar Studies 14,346 4,998 Political Thought and Intellectual History 15,807 3,900 Public Health 18,774 Public Policy (from 1 October 2013) 21,000 22.050 **Real Estate Finance** 11,382 18,948 3,900 18,774 Scientific Computing 4,998 Screen Media and Cultures 15,807 4,998 Social and Developmental Psychology 15,807 Social Anthropology 5.514 18.948 Technology Policy 17,880 18,774 Theology and Religious Studies 4,998 15,807 4,998 15,807 Theoretical and Applied Linguistics (from 1 October 2012) Veterinary Science 3,900 18,774 **M.Res. Degree:** Courses leading to examinations in **Biological Science** 3.900 18.774 3.900 18.774 Medical Science Photonic Systems Development 3,900 18,774 Social Anthropology 5,514 18,948 Ultra Precision 3,900 18,774 Diplomas Courses leading to examinations in Economics 9,000 incl. College fee 15,807 International Law 4,998 15,807 4,998 Legal Studies 15,807 Theology and Religious Studies 3,900 14,346

#### **Footnotes:**

8 Including Island students.

9 Where an M.Phil. course is taken on a part-time basis over two years the fee payable each year is half that shown in the table.

#### Table 3

Table 3		Annual Fee (£)				
	Home/EU students	Overseas students				
	2013–14			2014-15		
		A Overseas	В	С	D	Е
Qualification	Home/EU				Overseas students who commenced in	
Qualification	students	2010-11	2011–12	2012–13	2013–14 <sup>10</sup>	2014–15 <sup>10</sup>
Diplomas						
Conservation of Easel Paintings	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,774	18,774	18,774
<b>Ed.D. Degree</b> (five-year part-time course)	2,340	7,812	8,199	8,589	8,589	9,018
Eng.D. Degree	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Ph.D., M.Sc., and M.Litt. Degrees: <sup>11, 12</sup>						
Courses leading to examinations in Group 1						
Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Archaeology	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Asian and Middle Eastern Studies	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Classics Criminology	3,900 3,900	13,020 13,020	13,668 13,668	14,313 14,313	14,313 14,313	15,030 15,030
Economics	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Education	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
English	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
English and Applied Linguistics	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
History	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
History and Philosophy of Science and Medicine	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
History of Art	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Land Economy Law	3,900 3,900	13,020 13,020	13,668 13,668	14,313 14,313	14,313 14,313	15,030 15,030
Mathematical Statistics	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Mathematics	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Modern and Medieval Languages	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Music	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Philosophy	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Social and Political Sciences	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Social Anthropology Theological and Religious Studies	3,900 3,900	13,020 13,020	13,668 13,668	14,313 14,313	14,313 14,313	15,030 15,030
Group 2	2 000	17.042	17.000	10.722	10 722	10 (71
Architecture Biological Anthropology	3,900 3,900	17,043 17,043	17,889 17,889	18,732 18,732	18,732 18,732	19,671 19,671
Chemical Engineering	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Computer Science	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Engineering	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Geography	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Management Studies Natural Sciences	3,900 3,900	17,043 17,043	17,889 17,889	18,732 18,732	18,732 18,732	19,671 19,671
Group 3	2		00 °==			26.270
Clinical Medicine Veterinary Medicine	3,900 3,900	31,521 31,521	33,075 33,075	34,644 34,644	34,644 34,644	36,378 36,378

#### Table 3 (continued)

#### Annual Fee (f)

	Home/EU students	Overseas students				
	2013-14			2014–15		
		A Overseas	В	С	D	E
		students who	Overseas	Overseas	Overseas	Overseas
		commenced in				students who
Qualification	Home/EU	or before	commenced in	commenced in	commenced in	commence in
	students	2010-11	2011-12	2012-13	2013-14 <sup>10</sup>	2014–15 <sup>10</sup>
Certificates of Postgraduate Study <sup>12</sup>						
Group 1						
Anglo-Saxon, Norse, and Celtic	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Economics	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
English	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Geography	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
History	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
International Relations	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Legal Studies	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Music	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Theology and Religious Studies	3,900	13,020	13,668	14,313	14,313	15,030
Group 2						
Chemical Engineering	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Computer Science	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Engineering	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671
Natural Science	3,900	17,043	17,889	18,732	18,732	19,671

#### **Footnotes:**

10 Including Island students.

11 For students following a part-time course the fee payable each term is 60% of the termly fee of a full-time student (i.e. 60% of one-third of the annual fee).

12 From 2013–14 fees for Overseas Ph.D., C.P.G.S., Eng.D., and Ed.D. students will be fixed for the duration of their course (i.e. fees in each year of their course will be the same as the fee in their year of entry).

#### 404 CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY REPORTER

Table 4A		Annual Fee (£) (for all students)		
Qualification	_	2013–14	2014–15	
<b>M.B.A. Degree</b> ( <i>fees depending on length of course</i> ) One term in residence Two terms in residence Three terms in residence		14,000 25,600 38,000		
<b>Executive M.B.A.</b> 2012 intake	2nd year (2013–14)	20,800		
2013 intake	1st year (2013–14) 2nd year (2014–15)	33,500	21,500	
<b>M.Fin. Degree</b> (one year full-time course)		34,500		
<b>M.D.Degree</b> ( <i>fee for the course</i> ) (from March 2012)		3,900		

Table 4B	Annuu Fee (2)	
Qualification		
M.St. Degree: two-year part-time courses in Advanced Subject Teaching (starts September 2012) No course commencing in September 2013	-	-
Applied Criminology, Penology, and Management Course commencing in March 2013	3,750	3,750
Applied Criminology and Police Management Course commencing in March 2013	3,750	3,750
Building History Course commencing in October 2013	5,460	7,875
Construction Engineering Course commencing in September 2013	10,000 incl. College fee	10,000 incl. College fee
Creative Writing (starts October 2013) Course commencing in October 2013	5,000	10,000
Historic Environment Course commencing in September 2013	3,250	7,475
Interdisciplinary Design for the Built Environment Course commencing in September 2013	5,600	5,600
International Relations Course commencing in September 2013	4,500	7,000
Sustainability Leadership Course commencing in August 2013	8,750	8,750

#### Footnote:

13 Including Island students who are in the 2013–14 (and later years') academic year intake irrespective of their M.St. course start date.

#### Table 5D: Continuing Island Students (Channel Islands and Isle of Man)

The following rates shall apply to undergraduate student members of the University for whom the Continuing Island student rate of fee applies.

The separate Island rates of fee have been discontinued for Island students who commence a course in 2013–14 or later. See Table 1A for Overseas rates.

	Annual Fee (£)		
	Continuing Island students		
Qualification	Island students who commenced before 1 September 2012	Island students who commenced on or after 1 September 2012 and before 1 September 2013	
	2013-14	2013–14	
B.A. Degree:			
Group 1	6,615	9,000	
Group 2 and 3	8,298	9,000	
Group 4 and 5	10,500	10,500	
Year abroad fees (Asian and Middle Eastern Studies, Law, Modern and Medieval Languages) <sup>14</sup>	3,309	4,500	
B.Th. Degree	6,615	9,000	
Medical and Veterinary Degrees:			
M.B., B.Chir. Degrees, Vet.M.B. Degree	23,433	24,000	
M.Eng. Degree and M.Sci. Degree	10,500	10,500	
Mus.B. Degree	(current	ly suspended)	
Certificates (excluding P.G.C.E.)	10,500	10,500	
Postgraduate Certificate in Education (P.G.C.E.) <sup>15</sup>	8,298	9,000	
M.A.St.			
Astrophyics	10,500	10,500	
Materials Science	10,500	10,500	
Mathematics	8,298	9,000	
Physics	10,500	10,500	

#### **Footnotes:**

14 This fee applies to students undertaking a course of study in a member country of the European Union under Regulation 6 for the Law Tripos and to students spending a period abroad in accordance with Regulation 23 for the Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Tripos or Regulation 28 for the Modern and Medieval Languages Tripos.

15 For students who commenced on or after 1 September 2012 the fee for the course of study for the Postgraduate Certificate in Education is £9,000. This was approved via a revised access agreement by the Office for Fair Access.

#### **University Computing Service relocation: Notice**

During 2013 the University Computing Service (UCS) will be moving. This includes all main servers and associated networking and almost all staff, and affects most UCS services.

Current information on the planned schedule of moves can be found at http://www.ucs.cam.ac.uk/about-us/ucs-move; this web page will be updated as University plans are finalized.

Certain services will remain on the New Museums site for the convenience of users. These will include the Photographic and Illustration Service, a Reception/Service Desk presence, and the Service's main teaching rooms.

The UCS is currently planning the relocation programme and has begun preparation for the transfer of services. Every effort will be made to try to keep service disruption to a minimum during the transition by careful staging of system moves.

#### VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS, ETC.

#### Vacancies in the University

A full list of current vacancies can be found at http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/.

**Professorship of Aerothermal Technology in the Department of Engineering**; informal enquiries: Professor Dame Ann Dowling, Head of the Department of Engineering (email: head@eng.cam.ac.uk or tel. 01223 332739); closing date: 2 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/offices/academic/secretary/professorships/; quote reference: NA26512

Academic Clinical Lectureships in the School of Clinical Medicine; six posts available in the following specialities: General Practice, Clinical Neuroscience (Neurology or Neurosurgery), Oncology (Medical), Medicine (Respiratory or Cardiology), Surgery (Transplantation), and Histopathology; salary: £30,992–£53,663; further particulars: http://www. medschl.cam.ac.uk/jobs/?p=2387; closing date: 5 April 2013; quote reference: RC00964

University Lectureship in Electronic Materials and Devices in the Department of Engineering; salary: £37,382– £47,314; closing date: 15 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.eng.cam.ac.uk/admin/jobsinfo/ELECTRONIC; quote reference: NA26962

**University Lectureship in Engineering Design in the Department of Engineering**; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 5 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.eng.cam.ac.uk/admin/jobsinfo/ENGDESIGN; quote reference: NA26942

**University Lectureship in Mechatronics in the Department of Engineering**; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 8 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.eng.cam.ac.uk/admin/jobsinfo/ULMechatronics; quote reference: NA26952

University Lectureship in Physiology in the Department of Physiology, Development, and Neuroscience; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 15 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.pdn.cam.ac.uk/jobs; quote reference: PM00999

University Lectureship in Reproductive Biology in the Department of Physiology, Development, and Neuroscience; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 15 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.pdn.cam.ac.uk/jobs; quote reference: PM00992

University Lectureship in Sociology, Demography, or related fields in the Department of Sociology; salary: £37,382–£47,314; closing date: 11 April 2013; further particulars: see the job opportunities link at http://www.sociology. cam.ac.uk; quote reference: ZZ26602

**Research Associate (fixed-term) in the Department of Medicine**; salary: £27,854–£36,298; closing date: 7 April 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/1200/; quote reference: RC01000

**Research Assistant (fixed-term) in the Department of Medicine**; salary: £24,049–£27,047; closing date: 7 April 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/1043/; quote reference: RC00874

*The University values diversity and is committed to equality of opportunity.* 

The University has a responsibility to ensure that all employees are eligible to live and work in the UK.

## **CRASSH Visiting Fellowships, Early Career Fellowships, and Mellon Teaching Fellowships, 2013–14**

The Centre for Research in the Arts, Social Sciences, and Humanities (CRASSH) is pleased to announce the results of its competitions for Visiting Fellowships and Early Career Fellowships at CRASSH in 2013–14. A complete list of those who have been awarded fellowships and details of their research projects are available online at http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/1171/visiting-fellows-2013-14.htm and http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/1172/early-career-fellows-2013-14.htm. Mellon Teaching Fellows are John Forrester (HPS) and Peter Mandler (History); Mary Laven (History) and Alexander Marr (History of Art); see http://www.crassh.cam.ac.uk/page/632/mellon-teaching-fellowships.htm.

#### AWARDS, ETC.

#### **Evans Fund: Notice**

The Advisory Committee for the Evans Fund will shortly be considering applications for the 2013 Evans Fellowships. A graduate of any university is eligible to apply, provided that he or she intends to engage in research in anthropology and archaeology in relation to South East Asia. A number of grants may also be awarded towards the cost of research in areas covered by the remit of the Fund. The deadline for receipt of complete applications and for referees' letters is 23 April 2013. Further information and application forms are available at http://www.socanth.cam.ac.uk/2013/02/the-evans-fund-2/.

#### NOTICES BY FACULTY BOARDS, ETC.

#### Natural Sciences Tripos, Part II (Biological and Biomedical Sciences), 2013–14: Notice

The Faculty Board of Biology gives notice that the following combination of Major and Minor Subjects, additional to, or amending, those previously published (*Reporter*, 6297, 2012–13, p. 359), will be offered in the Natural Sciences Tripos Part II (Biological and Biomedical Sciences) in 2013–14:

#### **Major Subjects:**

major	Subjects.		
	Major Subject	Permissible Minor Subjects	Examination requirements
408	Pharmacology	103 104 107 109 113 115 116 117 119 120 122 123 125 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
409	Psychology	107 111 115 122 (further Minor Subjects may be available depending on the Psychology options chosen)	Four written papers of three hours each.
412	Plant Sciences (Cellular – M1, M2, L1, L3)	104 105 107 109 111 115 116 118 119 122 123 125 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
413	Plant Sciences (Ecology – M3 and M1 or Zoology M2, L2 and Zoology L4)	104 105 106 109 111 118 121 123	Four written papers of three hours each.
414	Genetics (maximum of ten candidates)	103 104 105 107 113 114 115 116 118 122 123 125 126 (a fifth Genetics module can be taken as a Minor Subject)	Four written papers of three hours each.
417	Neuroscience (Neuroscience) (maximum of 15 candidates)	107 113 115 116 117 118 122 125 (Minor Subjects 106 and 111 are also offered if not taken as Major Subject modules)	Four written papers of three hours each.
418	Zoology (Cells and Development – two from M6, M7, M8, 2 from L5, L6, L7)	103 105 109 111 122	Four written papers of three hours each.
419	Zoology (Behaviour – M4, M5, L3, L4)	103 104 106 113 114 115 116 117 118 121 123 124 125 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
421	Zoology (Ecology and Conservation – two from M2, M3, M5 and L3, L4 or Plant Sciences L2)	103 104 106 109 113 114 117 118 119 120 121 123	Four written papers of three hours each.
422	Zoology (Ecology and Genetics – two from M2, M3, M5 and 2 from L3, L4, L5 and Genetics M5)	103 104 109 113 114 118 119 123	Four written papers of three hours each.
423	Zoology (Ecology and Plant Sciences – two from Plant Sciences M3, Zoology M2, M3, and L3, L4 or Plant Sciences L2)	103 104 105 106 109 113 114 118 121 123	Four written papers of three hours each.
Minor	Subjects:		

#### Minor Subjects:

Minor Subject

Examination requirements

113 Early Medicine (HPS Pt II Paper 2) (*maximum of 12* One written paper of three hours' duration. *candidates*)

Minor Subject 108 (Medicine, Body, and Society (Politics, Psychology, and Sociology Paper Soc 10)) will no longer be offered in 2013–14.

biology,

#### REPORTS

#### Report of the General Board on the re-establishment of a Professorship in the Sainsbury Laboratory

The GENERAL BOARD beg leave to report to the University as follows.

1. In their Report dated 20 January 2010 (Reporter, 6175, 2009-10, p. 490) the Board proposed the establishment of the Sainsbury Laboratory as an institution within the School of the Biological Sciences. The Report recommended that, in order to provide the requisite senior scientific leadership for the Laboratory, three Professorships be established, one of which would be held in association with the Directorship of the Laboratory. Funding for an initial period of ten years was included in the agreement between the University and the Gatsby Charitable Foundation, with the Council of the School of the Biological Sciences underwriting the positions for a single tenure.

2. The Professorship of Plant Morphodynamics has lapsed following the resignation of Professor Elliott Meyerowitz, inaugural Director of the Sainsbury Laboratory, and the Faculty Board of Biology and the Council of the School of the Biological Sciences

4. The General Board recommend:

whose work falls within the field described in paragraph 2. I. That a Professorship of Plant Development be established from 1 June 2013 for one tenure, placed in

interface

Schedule B of the Statutes, and assigned to the Sainsbury Laboratory.

6 March 2013

L. K. BORYSIEWICZ, Vice-Chancellor PHILIP ALLMENDINGER N. BAMPOS H A CHASE SARAH COAKLEY

MARTIN DAUNTON SIMON FRANKLIN C. A. GILLIGAN DAVID GOOD SADIE JARRETT

**ROBERT KENNICUTT** PATRICK MAXWELL RACHAEL PADMAN JOHN RALLISON

#### Report of the General Board on the establishment of a Readership in Number Theory

The GENERAL BOARD beg leave to report to the University as follows:

1. Number Theory is a central area of mathematical science, on the one hand constituting a vast body of knowledge and on the other containing a wealth of remarkable hypotheses and conjectures. While some of these seem quite inaccessible at the moment, the subject has seen some spectacular advances and new techniques. Opportunities for significant further progress have opened up and it is imperative that Cambridge be actively involved in new developments.

2. The Department of Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics has a strong tradition in this ancient branch of mathematics. However, the retirement of Professor J. H. Coates from the Sadleirian Professorship of Pure Mathematics with effect from 30 September 2012 and the resignation of Professor N. I. Shepherd-Barron with effect from 1 September 2013 leave the Department deficient in senior leadership in the field. It is a strategic priority for the Department to maintain and develop its strength as a world centre in Number Theory, and an

exceptional appointment at Readership level will help restore academic leadership in this area.

accordingly propose its re-establishment for a further

tenure. Funding for the Professorship is guaranteed for a

further eight years, and the Council of the School of the

Biological Sciences have once again agreed to underwrite

the position for the remainder of its tenure. The person

appointed will be expected to offer leadership at the

mathematics, and computer science in the Laboratory, and

School's proposal for the establishment of the Professorship

on this basis. They are assured that suitable accommodation

for the Professor is available in the Sainsbury Laboratory,

which has undertaken to provide the necessary support and

facilities. The Board have agreed that election to the

Professorship should be made by an ad hoc Board of

Electors and that candidature should be open to all persons

3. The General Board have accepted the Council of the

developmental

plant

this is reflected in the revised title of the Professorship.

between

3. The Council of the School of the Physical Sciences has approved the case made by the Department and recommends the establishment of a single tenure Readership in Number Theory in the Department of Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics. The costs of the Readership will be met by the allocation previously supporting Professor Shepherd-Barron's personal Professorship. The underlying University Lectureship will be suppressed.

4. The General Board have accepted the Council of the School's proposal for the establishment of this Readership. The criteria for appointment to a Readership through open competition will be identical to those for appointment through the senior academic promotions procedure. The Appointments Committee will be constituted as specified in the Regulations (Statutes and Ordinances, p. 743).

5. The General Board accordingly recommend:

I. That a Readership in Number Theory be established in the Department of Pure Mathematics and Mathematical Statistics for a single tenure with effect from 1 May 2013.

1 March 2013	L. K. BORYSIEWICZ, Vice-Chancellor	MARTIN DAUNTON	ROBERT KENNICUTT
	Philip Allmendinger	Simon Franklin	PATRICK MAXWELL
	N. BAMPOS	C. A. GILLIGAN	RACHAEL PADMAN
	H. A. CHASE	David Good	JOHN RALLISON
	SARAH COAKLEY	SADIE JARRETT	Amanda Talhat

#### GRACES

#### Graces submitted to the Regent House on 13 March 2013

The Council submits the following Graces to the Regent House. These Graces, unless they are withdrawn or a ballot is requested in accordance with the regulations for Graces of the Regent House (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 107), will be deemed to have been approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 22 March 2013.

**1.** That, with effect from 1 September 2013, the Table of Fees attached to the regulations for University Composition Fees (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 158) be amended as set out in the Schedule to the Council's Notice dated 11 March 2013 (p. 396).

**2.** That the regulations for the Centre for Advanced Religious and Theological Studies (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 610) be rescinded with effect from 30 September 2013.<sup>1</sup>

**3.** That in Regulations 2(c) for the Hartwell Fund for Islamic Studies, for the Study of Religion Fund, and for the Sheikh Zayed Fund for Islamic Studies (*Statutes and Ordinances*, pp. 832, 955, and 1000) references to the Director of the Centre for Advanced Religious and Theological Studies be replaced with references to a member of the Faculty Board of Divinity appointed by that Board with effect from 30 September 2013.<sup>1</sup>

**4.** That an increase of 3.1% and 11% respectively to the current stipends of the Proctors and Esquire Bedells be approved with effect from 1 October 2013.<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> The Faculty Board of Divinity has agreed to suppress the Centre for Advanced Religious and Theological Studies and to replace its functions with a Director of Research in the Faculty who will chair the Faculty's research committee.

<sup>2</sup> These increases reflect the extension to the duties of the Proctors and Esquire Bedells following approval of the proposal to extend General Admission over four days (Grace 1 of 13 February 2013).

#### АСТА

#### Approval of Grace submitted to the Regent House on 27 February 2013

The Grace submitted to the Regent House on 27 February 2013 (*Reporter*, 6299, 2012–13, p. 384) was approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 8 March 2013.

J. W. NICHOLLS, *Registrary* 

END OF THE OFFICIAL PART OF THE 'REPORTER'

#### **REPORT OF DISCUSSION**

#### Tuesday, 5 March 2013

A Discussion was held in the Senate-House. Pro-Vice-Chancellor Professor Jeremy Sanders was presiding, with the Registrary's Deputy, a Pro-Proctor, and three other persons present.

The following Reports were discussed:

Report of the General Board, dated 6 February 2013, on the establishment or re-establishment of two Professorships in the Department of Clinical Neurosciences (Reporter, 6297, 2012–13, p. 362).

No remarks were made on this Report.

Report of the General Board, dated 6 February 2013, on the establishment of an MRC Research Professorship of Epidemiology (Reporter, 6298, 2012–13, p. 370).

No remarks were made on this Report.

#### Elections

St Edmund's College

The following recent elections and appointments were made: Title 'A' Fellows:

Mr Gordon Chesterman, M.A., *CTH* Dr Michele Gemelos, B.A., *Skidmore College, New York*, M.Phil., D.Phil., *Oxford* 

Bye Fellow:

Dr Shaun Larcom, B.Com., *Melbourne*, M.Phil., *JE*, Ph.D., *University College, London* 

Emeritus Fellow:

Dr Michael Robson, B.A., Kent, Ph.D., SID, OFM Conv.

Fellow Commoners:

Professor Leland Smith Burns, B.S., M.B.A., UCLA, Ph.D., *Erasmus University, Rotterdam* Mr Patrick Mitton, B.Sc., *London*, M.Sc., *ED* 

#### Visiting Fellows:

Professor Bernard Laurent, M.Sc., D.E.A., Université Lyon II Lumière, Ph.D., Université Paris I Panthéon Sorbonne (19 January – 2 February 2013)

- Professor Susan Miller, B.A., Wellesley College, USA, M.A., Brandeis University, Ph.D., University of Michigan, Ann Arbor (1 April – 6 June 2013)
- Professor Shuichi Ishida, B.Eng., *Chiba University, Japan*, M.Eng., *Tokyo Institute of Technology, Japan*, D.Eng., *Kyoto University*, Ph.D., *Hokkaido University, Japan* (25 September 2012 25 September 2013)
- Professor James W. Jones, B.A., Earlham College, IN, M.Div., Episcopal Theological School, Cambridge, MA, Ph.D., Brown University, RI, Psy.D., Rutgers University, NJ, Th.D. (honoris causa), Uppsala University, Sweden (1 October 2012 – 30 June 2013)

Senior Members:

Rt Revd Dr David Thomson, M.A., SE, B.A., D.Phil., Oxford

- Professor Miroslaw A. Srokosz, B.A., *Gloucester*, B.S., Ph.D., *Bristol*
- Visitor to the Senior Combination Room:

Dr Hilary Marlowe, B.A, King's College, London, B.A, Manchester

#### Vacancies

*Girton College*: Stipendiary Research Fellowship in arts, humanities and social sciences; tenure: three years from the start of the 2013–14 academical year; closing date: 19 April 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.girton.cam.ac.uk/vacancies

*Peterhouse*: Finance Manager; salary: £48,027–£54,142; closing date: 2 April 2013; further particulars: http:// www.pet.cam.ac.uk or email the Peterhouse HR Coordinator: hw211@cam.ac.uk

*St John's College*: College Research Associates (up to six posts); collegiate benefits apply (no stipend or honorarium); tenure: from 1 September 2013; closing date: 31 May 2013; further particulars: http://www.joh. cam.ac.uk

*Wolfson College*: Domestic Bursar, to lead the management of the College's 'hotel' functions, specifically the catering, accommodation, and conference functions; salary: £40,044–£43,275; closing date: 8 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.wolfson.cam.ac.uk/jobs

#### **Events**

Newnham College: The inaugural Gillian Vaisey Memorial Lecture, delivered by Professor David Spiegelhalter and entitled *The highs and lows of communicating statistics with the public*, will be held at 5.30 p.m. on Friday, 26 April 2013 in the Law Faculty. Further information is available at http://www.newn.cam. ac.uk/At-Newnham/events.

#### EXTERNAL NOTICES

#### **University of Oxford**

*Jesus College*: Associate Director – 2021 Campaign; salary: £29,249–£35,938; closing date: 15 April 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.jesus.ox.ac.uk/ fellows-and-staff/vacancies/college

Research Officer; salary: £23,352–£27,046; closing date: 25 March 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http:// www.jesus.ox.ac.uk/fellows-and-staff/vacancies/college

*Lincoln College*: Chaplain and Welfare Officer; closing date: 12 April 2013; further particulars: http://www.lincoln.ox.ac.uk/Chaplain-and-Welfare-Officer

*Merton College*: Stipendiary Lecturership in Philosophy (for one year commencing on 1 October 2013); salary: £13,789 a year, plus benefits; closing date: 5 April 2013 at 12 noon; further particulars: http://www.merton.ox.ac.uk/ vacancies/index.shtml or email academic.administrator@ merton.ox.ac.uk

Notices for publication in the *Reporter* should be sent to the Editor, Cambridge University Reporter, Registrary's Office, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN (tel. 01223 332305, email **reporter.editor@admin.cam.ac.uk**). Copy should be sent as early as possible in the week before publication; short notices will be accepted up to **4 p.m. on Thursday** for publication the following Wednesday. Inclusion of notices is at the discretion of the Editor.